
  
 

 
 

 

 Matt Jones  County Commissioner    Claire Levy  County Commissioner    Marta Loachamin  County Commissioner 

Community Planning & Permitting 
Courthouse Annex  •  2045 13th Street  •  Boulder, Colorado  80302  •  Tel: 303.441.3930 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 471  •  Boulder, Colorado 80306  •  www.bouldercounty.org 
 

Building Safety & Inspection Services  
 

 
BOULDER COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

PUBLIC HEARING 
BERTHOUD FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FIRE CODE  

(2021 IFC) 
Public Meeting - THURSDAY, OCTOBER 20, 9:30 a.m. 

Fire Code Docket FCRC-22-0001 

 
Staff: Ron Flax, Chief Building Official, Deputy Director of Community Planning & 
Permitting – Building and Permits, Secretary to the Fire Code Review Committee 

 
The subject of this hearing is acceptance of the proposed Berthoud Fire Protection District 
Fire Code for administration by the Berthoud Fire Protection District. 
 
The Berthoud Fire Protection District (FPD) lies in the extreme northeastern part of the 
unincorporated county and consists of a strip of land ten miles wide and one mile deep. It is 
bounded on the west by the Lyons Fire Protection District and on the south by the Hygiene 
and Mountain View Fire Protection Districts. The FPD extends into Larimer County to the 
north, includes the Town of Berthoud, and extends into Weld County to the east. 
 
The FPD’s board of directors have adopted the 2021 edition of the International Fire Code 
(IFC), including the following appendices: B, C, D, E, F, G, H, I, K & N.  Most of the 
proposed Berthoud Fire Protection District Fire Code accepts the 2021 IFC as published by 
the International Code Council.   
 
Overall, this adoption resolution is largely similar to the adoption resolutions of previous 
editions of the IFC.   
 
Results of the Fire Code Review Committee Discussion and Recommendations:  The 
Boulder County Fire Code Review Committee met on May 24, 2022, at 3:00 PM.  This was 
a Virtual Hearing using Microsoft Teams.  The meeting minutes are attached.   
 
The committee voted unanimously to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners 
that the proposed Berthoud Fire Protection District Fire Code be ACCEPTED for 
administration by the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie 
within the boundaries of the FPD.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board of County 
Commissioners ACCEPT the proposed Berthoud Fire Protection District Fire Code for 
administration by the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie 
within the boundaries of the FPD. 



 
 

Attachments: Berthoud FPD Fire Code Adopting Resolution  
  Map of Berthoud FDP Tax district. 

Staff Recommendation for the May 24, 2022 Fire Code Review Committee 
  Meeting Minutes from the May 24, 2022 Fire Code Review Committee 
 
 



























R69WR70W

Mountain View
Fire District

Hygiene
Fire District

Berthoud
Fire District

66

£¤287

Larimer County

Longmont

County Boundary
Municipalities

Fire Protection Districts
Berthoud Fire District
Hygiene Fire District
Lyons Fire District
Mountain View Fire

Berthoud Fire
Protection District

Doc Path: V:\gislu\Special Districts\Fire Protection Districts\FireProtectionDistricts Countywide_Ned_Berthoud.mxd
joryan

Date: 5/16/2022
The user agrees to all Terms of Use set
forth by Boulder County. For Terms of
Use, please visit:
www.bouldercounty.org/mapdisclaimer

0 0.8 1.6
Miles



  
 

 
 

 

Matt Jones  County Commissioner    Claire Levy  County Commissioner    Marta Loachamin  County Commissioner 
 

Community Planning & Permitting 
Courthouse Annex  •  2045 13th Street  •  Boulder, Colorado  80302  •  Tel: 303.441.3930 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 471  •  Boulder, Colorado 80306  •  www.bouldercounty.org 
 

Boulder County 
Fire Code Review Committee 

 
Minutes 

May 24, 2022 
3:00 PM 

Virtual Hearing via Microsoft Teams 
 
On May 24th, the Boulder County Fire Code Review Committee met to discuss two fire code 
adoption requests: the adoption and amendments of the 2021 International Fire Code by 
Berthoud Fire Protection District AND the adoption and amendments of the 2018 International 
Fire Code by Nederland Fire Protection District.  
 
The meeting convened at 3:16 pm and was recorded.  This recording is available upon request.   
 
Board Members Present: Michelle Kelly, Toby Myers, and Dean Rogers. 
 
Staff Present: Ron Flax (Chief Building Official/CP&P Deputy Director), Kathy Gissel (Permit 
Operations Manager), Rick Hackett (Communications Specialist), Liana James (County 
Attorney) and Erica Rogers (County Attorney). 
 
Interested Others: Doug Saba and Rik Henrikson. 
 
1.  Call to Order 
Dean Rogers called the meeting to order. 
 
2.  Past Minutes 
Approval of Fire Code Review Committee minutes from June 8, 2021 (Lyons and Mountain 
View Adoption of Fire Codes). 
Motion: Michelle Kelly moved to approve the minutes 
Second: Toby Myers 
Vote:     Motion approved by unanimous vote.   
 
3.  Public Hearing 
FCRC-22-0001 – BERTHOUD FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT REQUESTS TO 
ADOPT AND AMEND THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 
The Fire Code Review Committee had a detailed discussion of the text of the proposed 
amendments contained within Berthoud Fire Protection District Resolution 2021-11-16.  There 
were a few concerns raised about some wording that could potentially limit the fire district’s 
ability to enforce the fire code, as well as some questions regarding potential conflicts with the 
Boulder County Land Use code.  The consensus of the committee was that the wording is not 
anticipated to create any conflicts in practice and should be approved as proposed.     
 



Motion: Michelle Kelly motioned to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that 
the proposed Berthoud Fire Protection District Fire Code be ACCEPTED for administration by 
the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie within the boundaries of 
the fire protection district. 
Second: Dean Rogers  
Vote:     Motion approved unanimously 
 
FCRC-22-0002 – NEDERLAND FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT REQUESTS TO 
ADOPT AND AMEND THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 
Rik Henrikson from Nederland FPD presented the requested code adoption and amendments.  
 
The Fire Code Review Committee had a few questions and suggestions for the Fire District.  
The committee identified several typographical errors, as well as several locations where 
corrections were needed to ensure that the resolution was referencing the correct documents or 
correct editions of referenced documents.  There were also a few editorial recommendations that 
would improve the clarity of the resolution and reduce possible confusion.   
 
Rik Henrikson agreed to take the edits and comments back to the Nederland Board, and with 
their Board’s approval of the changes, will then resubmit their requested adoption to Boulder 
County. The Committee agreed that they would not need to review revised Nederland 
Resolution as long as the changes aligned with the committee’s recommendations.   
 
Motion: Michelle Kelly motioned to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that 
the proposed Nederland Fire Protection District Fire Code be ACCEPTED for administration by 
the district in those portions of unincorporated Boulder County that lie within the boundaries of 
the fire protection district, with the stipulations as noted in the staff recommendation and 
comments suggested by the committee.   
 
Second: Toby Myers  
Vote:     Motion approved unanimously  
 
4.  Adjourned 
Motion: Dean Rogers concluded the hearing 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 pm. 
 
 
5. Additional Post Meeting Notes: On July 29th, the Nederland Fire Protection District 
submitted a revised Resolution Adopting and Amending the 2018 Edition of the International 
Fire Code to Ron Flax, Secretary of the Boulder County Fire Code Review Committee.  This 
document was approved on July 27th, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Nederland Fire 
Protection District.  The revised document contains all of the edits and revisions that were 
recommended by the Fire Code Review Committee and was determined by Ron Flax to meet the 
requirements contained in the motion for approval by the committee.   


	Staff Recommendation - Berthoud FPD - BOCC Hearing.pdf
	Berthoud Resolution - Adoption of the 2021 IFC - November 2021.pdf
	Berthoud FPD Map.pdf
	Berthoud and Nederland Fire Code Review Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf

